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Overview
Publicly-traded companies that operate in highly regulated industries, such as in the health care sphere, often 
face difficult decisions about what information (if any) they should disclose to investors and others, when to 
disclose that information, and how to disclose it. "The life sciences industry encounters heightened securities 
fraud liability for several reasons – it is heavily regulated, highly profitable, and one in which a small fraction of 
new products will ultimately get approved for sale and marketing."1 In general, but subject to important 
exceptions, our securities laws in the United States do not require continuous disclosure of information. But 
when disclosures are made, they must be truthful and accurate. If disclosures have already been made, then 
companies face important related considerations – whether and when to provide corrective information about 
prior disclosures that, even though they were accurate when made, may have become inaccurate or 
misleading due to new developments.2 The so-called duty to update places "a proactive responsibility [on listed 
companies] to inform the marketplace when events evolve ... to render misleading some prior statement upon 
which the market is still relying."3 A corollary doctrine is the duty to correct a prior disclosure; it is only imposed 
if a prior disclosure was misleading or false when it was made.

Mylan's recent settlement with the Securities Exchange Commission (SEC or Commission) serves as a 
reminder about what constitute the best practices and other strategical considerations that listed companies 
need to consider when facing a disclosure decision. In the SEC's public release entitled "Mylan to Pay $30 
Million for Disclosure and Accounting Failures Relating to EpiPen," LITIG. REL. No. 24621 (Sept. 27, 2019), the 
Commission summarized the terms and basis for its settlement with Mylan N.V., the world's second-largest 
generic and specialty pharmaceuticals company, to resolve the allegations made in its simultaneously filed 
complaint. See Securities and Exchange Commission v. Mylan N.V., No. 19-civ-2904 (D.D.C.). Critically, the 
SEC explained that the underlying basis for pursuing Mylan for securities violations involved its failure to timely 
disclose material information and related accounting system failures:

As alleged in the complaint, public companies facing possible material losses from a lawsuit or government 
investigation must (1) disclose the loss contingency if a loss is reasonably possible; and (2) record an accrual 
for the estimated loss if the loss is probable and reasonably estimable. Mylan, however, failed to disclose or 
accrue for the loss relating to the DOJ investigation before October 2016, when it announced a $465 million 
settlement with DOJ. As a result, Mylan's public filings were false and misleading.

Further, as alleged in the complaint, Mylan's 2014 and 2015 risk factor disclosures that a governmental 
authority may take a contrary position on Mylan's Medicaid submissions, when CMS had already informed 
Mylan that EpiPen was misclassified, were misleading.4

In Part One of this series of Client Alerts, we begin by examining some of the major disclosure duties imposed 
by the federal securities laws before offering suggestions about how not to get cross-wise with the Commission 
and others. It is worth noting that the Commission's enforcement action against Mylan was just one of the 
litigation risks that it faced, as Mylan was also a named defendant in three other major cases:
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1. a federal securities class action suit that generally alleged the company was involved in two 
categories of wrongdoing: Medicaid misclassification of its branded drug EpiPen Auto-Injector 
("EpiPen") and antitrust violations. See Amended Class Action Complaint, Dkt. No. 39, filed in In Re 
Mylan N.V. Securities Litigation, No. 1:16-cv-07926-JPO (S.D.N.Y.);
 

2. qui tam actions that generally alleged it had misclassified EpiPen as a "non-innovator multiple source" 
drug (rather than a "single source" drug) for purposes of Medicaid's Drug Rebate Program and, as a 
result, had underpaid rebates owed under the Program for EpiPen.5 See Press Release, U.S. 
Attorney's Office for the District of Massachusetts, "Mylan Agrees to Pay $465 Million to Resolve 
False Claims Act Liability" (Aug. 17, 2019) and the related Settlement Agreement;6 and
 

3. a Consolidated Class Action Complaint that asserted federal and state antitrust claims, federal RICO 
Act violations, state consumer protection law violations, and unjust enrichment claims, and generally 
alleged that Mylan and others had monopolized the EpiPen market and obtained its profitable 
revenues by executing an illegal scheme that was carried out through several different avenues. See 
In re: EpiPen (Epinephrine Injection, USP) Marketing, MDL No: 2785 Sales Practices and Antitrust 
Litigation Case No. 17-md-2785-DDC-TJJ (D. Kan.).

To Speak, or Not to Speak, is the Question
"Our securities laws regulate publicly-traded entities by imposing disclosure duties and placing restrictions on 
fraud, manipulation, and insider trading."7 Violations can lead to parallel administrative, civil, and criminal 
proceedings (along with significant fines, penalties, and restitution orders). In § 21(a) of The Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act), Congress gave considerable discretion to the Commission to 
investigate federal securities law violations.8 "The SEC's primary enforcement actions include injunctive 
actions, actions for civil penalties, cease-and-desist orders, stop order proceedings, administrative proceedings 
against securities professionals, administrative proceedings pursuant to Section 15(c)(4) of the . . . Exchange 
Act, and administrative proceedings against professionals pursuant to Rule 102(e) of the SEC's Rules of 
Practice."9 This part of the alert focuses on two major statutes that the Commission enforces which are 
relevant to disclosure considerations – The Securities Act of 1933 (Securities Act) and The Exchange Act. The 
Commission has promulgated numerous implementing regulations under these laws that are designed to 
protect the investing public and make financial markets more transparent. A brief discussion of these key laws 
is included for reference below.

The Securities Act

The Securities Act regulates the domestic securities markets in an ex ante fashion. "The Securities Act, [o]ften 
referred to as the 'truth in securities' law, has two basic objectives, to 'require that investors receive financial 
and other significant information concerning securities being offered for public sale' and to 'prohibit deceit, 
misrepresentations, and other fraud in the sale of securities.'"10 "A primary means of accomplishing these goals 
is the disclosure of important financial information through the registration of securities. This information 
enables investors, not the government, to make informed judgments about whether to purchase a company's 
securities."11 The Securities Act regulates initial public offerings of securities and requires most listed 
companies to follow proscribed registration procedures that require, among other things, specified information 
be included in a prospectus.12

The Exchange Act

Under Exchange Act §§13(a) and 15(d), issuers of registered securities must provide specific information in the 
format required by SEC rules or regulations, in periodic reports, including annual and quarterly reports. The 
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Seventh Circuit summarized the major disclosure obligations of issuers under federal securities law in 
Gallagher v. Abbott Laboratories, 269 F.3d 806 (7th Cir. 2001), as follows:

We do not have a system of continuous disclosure. Instead firms are entitled to keep silent ... unless positive 
law creates a duty to disclose.... The 1933 Act requires firms to reveal information only when they issue 
securities, and the duty is owed only to persons who buy from the issuer or an underwriter distributing on its 
behalf; every other transaction is exempt under §4, 15 U.S.C. §77d. ... Section 13 of the ... Exchange Act ... 
adds that the SEC may require issuers to file annual and other periodic reports – with the emphasis on periodic 
rather than continuous. . . (emphasis added).13 

As initially noted, this general rule allowing a listed company to remain silent until required to disclose 
information is subject to various exceptions. Most securities fraud actions are based on alleged violations of 
Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and its implementing rule, 10b-5, which have a much broader reach than 
their counterparts under the Securities Act (that must involve fraudulent conduct related to a public offering).14

What Constitutes "Material Information" for Disclosure Purposes?

"Congress did not define the [key] term 'materiality' in either the Securities Act or the Exchange Act."15 This has 
resulted in scholarly commentary and regulatory interpretation about what constitutes material information to 
be disclosed – i.e., should it be analyzed using a quantitative approach; a qualitative one, or a hybrid?16 There 
has also been debate about what information a publicly-traded company must disclose (and when and how to 
make such disclosures). The Commission rejects using a quantitative or qualitative approach in favor of what it 
calls "robust" principles-based disclosures. As an SEC official recently explained:

[O]ur disclosure requirements are intended to provide investors with the material information they need about 
companies and their securities offerings to make informed investment and voting decisions. Robust disclosure 
decreases information asymmetries and is the foundation of reliable price discovery. When investors have 
confidence that they are receiving full and transparent disclosure, markets operate more efficiently and the cost 
of capital is reduced. …

"Our disclosure regime emphasizes materiality. Information is material if there is a substantial likelihood that a 
reasonable investor would consider it important in deciding how to vote or make an investment decision. 
Principles-based disclosure requirements articulate an objective and look to management to exercise judgment 
in satisfying that objective by providing appropriate disclosure when necessary."17

In general, the amount of information required by the Commission to be disclosed has increased even as the 
timeframe to do so has decreased.18 We believe it is ordinarily a best practice to err in favor of more liberal 
disclosures when considering the risks involved (which is always a facts-and-circumstances decision). Some 
key SEC Staff Accounting Bulletins to consider reviewing when making this determination are SAB No. 99 – 
Materiality; SAB No. 100 – Restructuring and Impairment Charges; and SAB No. 101 – Revenue Recognition.

The judicial standard for determining materiality is that "[w]hether a fact is material 'depends on the 
significance the reasonable investor would place on the withheld or misrepresented information.'"19 A lot of 
information simply is not material for disclosure purposes. For example, courts do not protect "soft" information 
upon which no reasonable investor could rely (such as when companies use "puffing" to market their 
products),20 and since the securities laws do not protect foolish investments, courts will examine the total mix 
of information in the marketplace to determine if a company's failure to disclose is actionable.21 "In analyzing 
Rule 10b-5 causation issues, courts often state that investors may not simply close their eyes to obvious risks, 
but must exercise due diligence in protecting themselves."22
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In the next related Client Alert, we examine the key regulations that mandate periodic and episodic disclosures, 
the events that led to the SEC's enforcement action against Mylan on the heels of the company's settlement of 
qui tam suits with the DOJ, and then offer some practical advice for reporting companies about how to assess 
and respond to the various risks presented under different scenarios.
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